MP2AC Meeting
August 14, 2014
11:00 a.m.
Agenda

. Call to Order

. Minutes

. Discussion of Application related to the Usage of Outdoor Facilities

. Adjourn



MP2AC Meeting
August 14, 2014
11:00 a.m.
Agenda

. Call to Order

The Chairman shall call the meeting to order.

. Minutes

The Committee will discuss and consider the minutes from the July 15, 2014,
MP2AC meeting. The minutes from the meeting are attached.

. Discussion of Application related to Usage of Outdoor Facilities

Last month the Committee approved the rules related to the use of the
outdoor facilities. As a part of the rules, an application was prepared that
implemented the rules. The Committee discussed this application at length
and requested that staff make some minor changes to the application.
Attached is the revised application related to the usage of outdoor facilities.

. Adjourn

The Committee shall adjourn to a time selected for its next meeting, if
needed.



TOWN OF DUCK
MUNICIPAL PROPERTY MASTER PLAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
July 15,2014

The Municipal Property Master Plan Advisory Committee for the Town of Duck convened at the
Duck Municipal Offices at 3:00 p.m. on Tuesday, July 15, 2014.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Paul Keller; Avery Harrison; Tim McKeithan; Charlie Pratt;
and Ben Vorndran.

MEMBERS ABSENT: None.

OTHERS PRESENT: Town Manager Christopher Layton; Public Information Officer Denise
Walsh; Fire Chief Donna Black; Police First Sergeant Jeff Ackerman; and Town Clerk Lori
Kopec.

OTHERS ABSENT: Police Chief Phillip Ferguson.

Chairman Keller called the meeting to order at 3:07 p.m.

APPROVAL OF JUNE 10, 2014 MINUTES

Ben Vorndran had a correction to Page 3 of the minutes.

Tim McKeithan moved to approve the June 10, 2014 minutes as amended. Avery Harrison
seconded.

Motion approved 5-0.

DISCUSSION OF USAGE POLICIES RELATED TO OUTDOOR FACILITIES

Chairman Keller suggested that the Committee discuss the draft ordinance. He asked the
Committee for their comments.

Ben Vorndran asked if in Section O, it would be advisable to have children supervised. He asked
if it was assumed that children would be supervised in all parts of the park. Fire Chief Black
noted that the definition of Park included all places. Ben Vorndran clarified that there were signs
up in the park that tell people to walk their bicycles. He noted that Section T states that bicycles
were prohibited on the boardwalk. Town Manager Layton stated that the use of bicycles was
prohibited.

Chairman Keller noted that the draft ordinance was undated. He asked if it would be dated once
Mayor Kingston signed it. Town Manager Layton stated that it would.

Town Manager Layton stated that the crux of the draft ordinance was Section N. He added that
that was where the Committee’s discussion had gone in order to amend the rules as far as the
events were concerned. He noted that the rest of the draft ordinance was basically a
housekeeping matter. He pointed out that Section N got at the use of the other facilities by saying
that the Town would consider requests for special events in writing on forms provided by the
Town. He stated that the date had been changed from May 1* to May 30™ as it seemed like a
reasonable timeframe and added that it was open to the general public, was free of charge, was



deemed to be for the good of the community, sponsored by or benefitted non-profit organizations,
and/or was in partnership with the Town. He explained that the partnership with the Town refers
to whether it was a commercial venture or something that was not associated with a non-profit, as
it would be an event that the Town would probably want to partner with. He stated that he could
not foresee an instance of a for-profit organization coming in to do an event in Town that the
Town would not be in partnership.

Tim McKeithan noted that the language in Section N read: “...is still deemed to be for the good
of the community...” He suggested leaving out language regarding if an event was not for non-
profit and have it read: “...is deemed to be for the good of the community and is in partnership
with the Town...” He asked if that was how the language would be read in Section N. Town
Manager Layton thought the intent of the language was that if a not for profit organization came
in and wanted to hold an event that the Town didn’t sponsor, it could still be considered, but if a
for-profit organization came in, he would want the organization to partner with the Town. He
noted that the language was a bit awkward. Tim McKeithan stated that it made sense, but wanted
clarification. Fire Chief Black thought it best to leave the language as it was written to allow for
wiggle room. Town Manager Layton agreed and suggested striking the word “or” from the
language.

Public Information Officer Walsh stated that if the Town wished to have a for-profit group hold
an event; Section N would be where it would be intended. Fire Chief Black agreed. Chairman
Keller thought the Town would want that control. Town Manager Layton agreed.

Charlie Pratt moved to send the draft ordinance forward to the Town Council for their approval.
Tim McKeithan seconded.

Motion carried 5-0.

Town Manager Layton stated that staff worked on the Rules of Use for Special Events, with the
rules alone intended to mirror the draft ordinance that was just voted on by the Committee. He
stated that the application process outlined what staff was looking for specifically and helped to
give people an idea of what the Town was referring to when they fill out the application. He
stated that they were not designed to be a separate set of rules but to be in coordination with them.
He noted that the rules were the official document and the document before the Committee was
one that Town staff would give to the event coordinator. Avery Harrison clarified that it was
more specific. Town Manager Layton stated she was correct. He stated that it had exactly what
staff was looking for in an application.

Tim McKeithan asked if a Town Park Special Events Permit Application would be required
regardless of the size of the event. Town Manager Layton stated that it would not necessarily be
required. Tim McKeithan clarified that Town staff had the right to require the application from
anyone that wanted to hold an event. Town Manager Layton stated he was correct. He stated that
it gave him some flexibility for certain events, such as the Easter egg hunt held by the Duck
United Methodist Church. He added that he would ask for documentation in an email form and if
it was a small enough event, he would probably request a letter or something in writing that he
could respond. He stated that that would be the form he would be asking for. He noted that the
application form in front of the Committee was designed for larger events, which may never
occur, such as a festival. He stated that larger events would require fees, which staff wanted to be
high to cut out those that were not serious about putting on an event.



Chairman Keller noted that Page 2 had the application fee listed as $15.00 and should be $25.00.
Town Manager Layton stated that he would correct it. Chairman Keller asked if the new forms
would be approved by the Town Council. Town Manager Layton stated that it would be since
there were fees associated. He thought the Committee should discuss the fees.

Ben Vorndran pointed out that Page 1 referenced Chapter 95 of the Town’s ordinances, but
thought it should be Chapter 93. Town Manager Layton stated he was correct.

Tim McKeithan noted that under Application Process, it talked of a security plan. He wondered
if the Town was opening a can of worms regarding supplemental lighting and temporary light
towers that may be required for outdoor special events. He pointed out that in other sections it
stated that all events would have to end by dark. He thought it should be left out of the rules and
if someone had a convincing reason and the Town wanted to partner with them, it could be
considered. Town Manager Layton stated that he would remove the language. Ben Vorndran
thought it referred to stage lighting. Public Information Officer Walsh stated that there were stage
lights but thought the language should be removed.

Chairman Keller noted that General Rules of Use #5 stated that alcoholic beverages may not be
sold on the Town’s park facilities. He asked what would happen if an event coordinator wanted
to rent a beer truck, pay for it themselves and give it out to people at the event. Ben Vorndran
noted that the use of alcohol was prohibited at the park. Chairman Keller asked what would
happen if the event coordinator wanted to bring in a keg instead. Town Manager Layton stated
that he wasn’t sure the Town would allow kegs. He added that the Town’s policy was that people
could bring alcohol in and if they behaved, it wouldn’t be an issue. He stated that if someone
brought in a keg, it may be over the top. He wondered if it was any different than if someone
brought in a cooler of beer and handed them out. He thought if a person brought in a cooler and
was with a small group of friends, that was one thing, but if someone brought in a large keg and
was handing out beer for one hundred people, that was different way of distributing it.

Chairman Keller noted that if an event coordinator brought in a keg, it would be easy for
underage kids to have access to it. Town Manager Layton agreed. He thought the Town’s
general policy was always that the sale of alcohol is prohibited on park grounds, especially at
events as it causes a different level of liability for the Town.

Public Information Officer Walsh asked if the language should read: “...may not be sold, served
or distributed...” Town Manager Layton suggested that it read: “...sold or distributed...” Public
Information Officer Walsh noted that it wasn’t saying that consuming alcohol was prohibited.
Fire Chief Black asked if Town Manager Layton could make an exception with the rule. Town
Manager Layton stated that he could.

Charlie Pratt asked for an explanation of the general fee schedule. Public Information Officer
Walsh stated that the application fee was a $25.00 non-refundable fee. She stated that the deposit
was $200.00 and could be refunded after the event once Town staff determined that the facilities
were fine. She stated that if it was a Town event, there would be no fee; if it was an event where
the Town was a major sponsor, the fee would be $275.00. She thought if the Town was a major
sponsor, the fee may be waived. She thought the Committee could discuss if this fee should be
included or if the fee should be less. She stated that the Duck/Outer Banks based not for profit fee
was $275.00 and the Out of Town not for profit fee was $1,050.00. She thought the Committee
could discuss what the fees would do, such as helping with the clean up and the additional
demand on Public Safety. She noted that off-duty police officers may be hired and wasn’t sure if



the $30.00/hour fee was enough. Police First Sergeant Ackerman noted that the officers charge
$35.00/hour.

Public Information Officer Walsh stated that the Town wanted people to be serious about the
events, adding that there was a $200.00 deposit. Avery Harrison asked how the Out of Town not
for profit fee was achieved. Public Information Officer Walsh stated that it was based on a fee
for the City of Greenville.

Ben Vorndran asked if the $200.00 deposit would cover any damages an event would incur.
Town Manager Layton stated that staff has not had any damages to the property to date that they
could base it on. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it helped to provide the level of
seriousness in that the event coordinator would be able to provide the $200.00 deposit. She
thought if the damage was less than $200.00, the Town would return the remainder to the event
coordinator. Ben Vorndran thought if someone damaged the stage of the amphitheater, it would
probably cost more than $200.00 to repair. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it was a
matter of how much people would be willing to put down for a deposit.

Town Manager Layton stated that if there was a group that wanted to use the amphitheater and
caused $1,500.00 worth of damage, the Town would try to recover that cost from the group. He
added that the $200.00 deposit guaranteed that the Town would get that back if there were
damages. Fire Chief Black suggested having a line in the policy stating that the applicant would
be subject to repairs. Avery Harrison thought it was a good idea.

Public Information Officer Walsh stated that the Committee may want to consider a lower fee for
an event where the Town was a major sponsor. Town Manager Layton suggested that in Section
3 regarding the return of the deposit, adding language to read as: “...if damage exceeds the
amount of the deposit, the event sponsors are responsible for the cost of any additional repairs...”
Chairman Keller asked if it was likely that the not for profits would be insured for the event.
Town Manager Layton stated that they would have to be insured. Avery Harrison agreed.

Tim McKeithan asked if the liability insurance would cover the damages. Town Manager Layton
stated that it would be up to the event sponsor. He added that they may have a policy that would
pay on it. He guessed that it was general liability if someone gets hurt and not damage to
property, so it would depend on what policy they had. He stated that the Town was not going to
require a sponsor to have property insurance. Tim McKeithan clarified that the clause was
similar to what rental companies have. Town Manager Layton agreed.

Charlie Pratt stated that he was not clear on the General Fee Schedule with regard to Duck/Outer
Banks based not for profit and the Out of Town not for profit. He felt it wasn’t clear when
reading it and wondered if the Town Council and applicants would understand what they meant.
He wondered if it could be rewritten or clarified. Avery Harrison suggested adding “Dare
County” to the language. Public Information Officer Walsh thought the Committee could look at
adding different levels. She thought there could be a Duck based not for profit. Town Manager
Layton asked if one existed. Public Information Officer Walsh thought the Duck Merchants
Association and the DCBA were considered ones. Charlie Pratt clarified that they put on Duck
based events. Public Information Officer Walsh thought a second level could be a Duck based not
for profit organization. She added that there could be a Dare County not for profit that would be
located within Dare County. Chairman Keller thought it was a good idea.

Town Manager Layton noted that the Out of Town not for profit was more for those that were out
of state. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it was more for those that were outside of



Dare County. Avery Harrison pointed out that the North Carolina Beach Buggy Association was
based in Virginia and was a good example of an Out of Town not for profit.

Tim McKeithan thought an Out of Town not for profit meant an entity outside of Dare County.
Chairman Keller thought it was a good point. Town Manager Layton agreed, adding that that was
what staff was referring to with regard to Out of Town.

Avery Harrison suggested changing “not for profit” to “non-profit”. Chairman Keller stated that
there was a difference between the two terms. Public Information Officer Walsh thought she
originally had non-profit and thought the Facility Use application had not for profit. Fire Chief
Black pointed out that non-profits are usually a 501C-3 entity. Town Manager Layton suggested
leaving the not for profit language in the form.

Fire Chief Black asked about the fee for an event where the Town was a major sponsor. Town
Manager Layton stated that he was thinking that there would not be a fee, but the Town would
require a deposit. Public Information Officer Walsh agreed. Fire Chief Black stated that since
the deposit would be required, would the line even be needed on the form. Town Manager
Layton stated that if it were a Town event only, no deposit would be needed. Public Information
Officer Walsh suggested the following language: “...no fee for a Town event...” Fire Chief
Black thought it was for an outside group coming in and didn’t feel the language needed to be
added. Public Information Officer Walsh suggested the following language: “...event where the
Town is a major sponsor, no fee would be needed...” Town Manager Layton was happy with the
language.

Fire Chief Black clarified that there would be an application fee, a deposit and an event fee.
Town Manager Layton suggested that it be called a facility use fee. Public Information Officer
Walsh thought there could be a separate section that would be entitled “Facility Use Fee” and
would include the fees.

Public Information Officer Walsh asked the Committee if they liked having a Duck-based not for
profit organization, a Dare County not for profit organization and an Outside of Dare/Currituck
not for profit organization. Avery Harrison suggested that the last one be called “Non-
Dare/Currituck based organization”. Fire Chief Black suggested that it be called “Other”. Town
Manager Layton suggested a Duck-based not for profit, an Outer Banks based not for profit and a
Non Outer Banks based not for profit. Chairman Keller liked Town Manager Layton’s
suggestion.

Public Information Officer Walsh clarified that the fees would be as follows: Duck based not for
profit would be $150.00; Outer Banks not for profit would be $500.00; and beyond that
$1,000.00. Town Manager Layton thought it had a nice synergy. Fire Chief Black suggested
doubling the fee for the Duck based not for profit. Public Information Officer Walsh clarified
that the fee would be $300.00. Tim McKeithan asked for the fees to be repeated. Public
Information Officer Walsh stated that the fees would be: $150.00 for the Duck based not for
profit; $300.00 or $500.00 for the Outer Banks not for profit. Avery Harrison thought $300.00
would make more sense and felt that $500.00 was too much. Charlie Pratt agreed. Ben Vorndran
thought it was more of a rental fee. Public Information Officer Walsh reminded the Committee
that there was also a deposit in addition to the fee. Tim McKeithan thought $300.00 was less
onerous.

Town Manager Layton reminded the Committee that they needed to look at it as events and not
individual pieces. He stated that someone could rent the green, the amphitheater or the picnic



shelter individually or as a whole and the fees would be the same since it was about an event and
not the individual facilities. Avery Harrison thought the fees should be higher for Duck as well.
Town Manager Layton stated that it could be broken out depending on the actual facilities that
were being used. He thought it could be done on an event by event basis while meeting the same
goals. He felt that having an event in the amphitheater while a different one was held in the green
was pretty slim.

Ben Vorndran clarified that an event could be held on the boardwalk, amphitheater, gazebo or
picnic shelter. Town Manager Layton stated that the boardwalk would not figure into it. Ben
Vorndran clarified that the fees would cover the use of all of the facilities. Town Manager
Layton stated that it would apply if the event required it, adding that the sponsor would have to
specify it in the application. Ben Vorndran asked if it was in the application. Public Information
Officer Walsh stated that it was. Fire Chief Black suggested that the fees be: $250.00, $500.00
and $1,050.00. Town Manager Layton stated that the Committee had decided at their last
meeting that they didn’t want to have a plethora of events that weren’t in partnership with the
Town. He added that if it was in partnership with the Town, there weren’t any fees assessed.
Tim McKeithan clarified that the latest proposal for the fees was $250.00, $500.00 and $1,000.00.
Town Manager Layton stated that it was $1,050.00.

Chairman Keller asked if male and female port-o-johns were needed if an event had 100 people in
attendance. Public Information Officer Walsh stated that it was two toilets for every 100 people.
She added that the Town had its own public restrooms. Town Manager Layton thought it was a
building code standard for events. Public Information Officer Walsh thought the Town could
request an event sponsor to bring in additional portable restrooms beyond what the Town had.
Fire Chief Black thought it would simplify things.

Town Manager Layton stated that the Committee needed to come to a solution on the fee
schedule. He suggested that the following language be added to Special Events Staff: “...during
application process, if applicable...”

Tim McKeithan asked what the Committee decided with regards to an event where the Town was
a major sponsor. Town Manager Layton stated that there would not be a fee, but a deposit would
be required.

Charlie Pratt asked if the Committee should go line by line on the fees and vote on them. Fire
Chief Black asked if the Committee was good with the fees they discussed. Public Information
Officer Walsh stated that the application fee would be $25.00. Ben Vorndran felt the fee should
be higher. Town Manager Layton noted that it was a review fee and felt it was a reasonable
application fee. Public Information Officer Walsh stated that the deposit would be $200.00. She
stated that the facility use fees would be as follows: Event where Town is a major sponsor — no
fee or deposit. Town Manager Layton suggested changing it to Event Use Fee. Fire Chief Black
thought there should be no fee for an event where the Town is a major sponsor. Public
Information Officer Walsh asked if it should be clarified. Town Manager Layton stated that
when people see No Fee, they may think it would include not having to provide a deposit. Public
Information Officer Walsh suggested it be No Event Use Fee.

Public Information Officer Walsh stated that the fees would be as follows: Duck based not for
profit: $250.00; Outer Banks based not for profit: $500.00; and Non-Outer Banks not for profit:
$1,050.00; and $35.00/hour for Off Duty Duck Police Officer.



Charlie Pratt asked if the Committee should vote on the fees. Chairman Keller stated that he
would like to see a final policy before the Committee votes on it. He asked if another meeting
would be necessary or if the Committee could vote via email. He thought another meeting was in
order. Town Manager Layton agreed, adding that it would be good for the Committee to review
the changes since they were significant.

Tim McKeithan asked if the Special Events Staff — fees associated during application process was
open-ended. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it applied to staff that was required to be
on site. She also thought it could apply to an event that the Town did not sponsor, but should be
one where there should be staff present. She stated that this would be addressed with the event
coordinator during the application process. Tim McKeithan stated that since there was a set fee
for the other things, he thought there should be a dollar value on Special Events Staff if they were
required to be at the event. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it would depend on who it
was, such as the people that would run the sound at the event. Avery Harrison thought it could be
addressed on a case by case basis. Town Manager Layton agreed, adding that it could be
difficult. Tim McKeithan asked if the people that work the sound come through the Town of
Duck. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it may not. Town Manager Layton added that
the event coordinator may request using the Town’s sound people.

Fire Chief Black stated that she liked that the fee was open-ended. She suggested the following
revision: “Special Event Staff...staffing and applicable fees assessed during application process.”
Tim McKeithan stated that he liked the suggested language.

Chairman Keller asked if the Committee should review the Town Park Special Events Permit
Application. Town Manager Layton stated that it was up to the Committee. Chairman Keller felt
that the application should be reviewed. Tim McKeithan noted that there were changes to it
based on the Committee’s discussions. Town Manager Layton stated that staff could bring back a
revised application at the next meeting. Chairman Keller thought it was a good idea. He added
that if the Committee members had questions about the form, they should bring them forward.
Tim McKeithan stated that the bottom of Page 1 had the following language: “...may be added
to the event...” He noted that tents were not authorized and thought the light towers should be
removed from the form. Public Information Officer Walsh stated that tents were put up on the
Town green for events. She added that even though people could not set up tents, the Town puts
them up for special events. She thought tents would be allowed. Town Manager Layton agreed.
Public Information Officer Walsh thought light towers could be stricken from the form. Town
Manager Layton suggested removing scaffolding from the form as well.

Avery Harrison asked if fencing should be stricken from the form. Public Information Officer
Walsh thought it was good to keep that in so Town staff would know what the event coordinator
would be using. Fire Chief Black stated that the way the application was written, it didn’t have to
have everything on it that Town staff may ask for. Public Information Officer Walsh agreed and
added that it was for staff to understand what the coordinator wanted to do and determine whether
they should be allowed or not. She added that “scaffolding” could be stricken from the form.

Ben Vorndran asked if the fee was good from January to January or only a one-time event. Town
Manager Layton stated that it was for a one-time event. He didn’t think it needed to be clarified
on the application. Public Information Officer Walsh asked if it should be added in the rules.

Tim McKeithan noted that in the ordinance that amended the general regulations, Section
93.05(X) talked of tents and umbrellas being prohibited in the park. He asked if it applied only to



individuals. Town Manager Layton stated that it did. He added that if an event coordinator noted
that a tent was needed for the sound person, it would be acceptable.

Avery Harrison asked if the number of vehicles and trailers should be indicated on the
application. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it could be added. Fire Chief Black
thought that once staff reviews the application, it could be clarified.

Fire Chief Black asked if the portable restrooms were still applicable on the application. Public
Information Officer Walsh stated that it was. Town Manager Layton stated that if the event was
big enough, the Town would require them.

Chairman Keller asked if anyone has had an issue with any of the fees with the Facility Use
Policy. Town Manager Layton stated that there have not been any issues.

Public Information Officer Walsh stated that she wasn’t sure how to address if an event
coordinator was going to use vendors that were outside of Duck. She explained that it would be
restaurants from outside of Duck. She wondered how businesses in Duck would respond to that.
She added that there wasn’t anything in the Town’s rules, but ideally the Town did not want to
have vendors that were outside of Duck as it could hurt the Duck businesses. Town Manager
Layton noted that the Black Pelican Restaurant wanted to sponsor Movies on the Green, but staff
declined because there were plenty of restaurants in Duck that could sponsor the event.

Ben Vorndran asked if a business outside of Duck wanted to give the Town money, it would be
acceptable. Public Information Officer Walsh stated that she had contacted some businesses in
Duck and was able to get some support. Fire Chief Black asked if it would fall under the pretense
that it would be deemed good for the community. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it
would. Ben Vorndran thought if someone wanted to donate money to the community, it would be
fine. Public Information Officer Walsh thought it could be done on a case by case basis. Town
Manager Layton agreed, adding that staff would want to make sure that the event coordinators
were doing their due diligence with working with the Duck businesses. He thought from a public
relations standpoint, the Town needed to go through the test first. He stated that it was a little
easier if it were an event outside of Duck that wanted to sponsor an event, such as a cell phone
company. He stated that staff would not have a problem with banks sponsoring events as long as
PNC Bank declined first.

Ben Vorndran thought an email could be sent to the restaurants in Duck to let them know that the
Town was looking to accept sponsorships for events and if they decline, there should not be an
issue with having an outside restaurant sponsoring the event. Fire Chief Black disagreed because
there were other restaurants in Duck that could sponsor the events. She felt that the Town should
not be involved. Public Information Officer Walsh agreed. Fire Chief Black felt that if a Duck
restaurant did not want to sponsor an event, the option to choose a restaurant outside of Duck
should not be given. Ben Vorndran clarified that if a company outside of Duck wanted to give
money to promote the Town, staff should decline. Fire Chief Black stated that it would pertain to
an event. Town Manager Layton stated that, from his perspective, it was politically untenable to
adopt the position that the Town would not take the money from where it came from as opposed
to taking the position of encouraging people to leave Duck to go to a restaurant outside of Duck.

Public Information Officer Walsh pointed out that the one holding the event would be receiving
the proceeds from the event and not the Town. Town Manager Layton stated that the general
public would not know this. Public Information Officer Walsh stated that people would think that



the Town would be receiving the sponsorship from the outside business and it would look bad.
She stated that events on the Town green should be well thought out.

Ben Vorndran stated that as a business owner in Duck, if a restaurant outside of Duck wanted to
donate money, he would want to donate more money than the outside business. He thought it
would help bring in more money for an event to make it bigger and better. Chairman Keller
reminded the Committee that the business owners in Duck do a lot for the Town in various ways.
Public Information Officer Walsh agreed.

Avery Harrison asked if the window for the dates should be May 31 instead of May 30. Public
Information Officer Walsh stated she was correct.

Charlie Pratt hoped that the Town receives a lot of applications for special events. Ben Vorndran
agreed. Charlie Pratt thought the Committee could review the application after a year to see if any
revisions would be needed. He hoped that there would be events between November 1 and May
31. Ben Vorndran agreed.

Town Manager Layton stated that he would bring back the application and rules that were part of
the application to the Committee at their next meeting.

It was consensus of the Committee to hold their next meeting on Thursday, August 14, 2014 at
11:00 a.m.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further discussion, Tim McKeithan moved to adjourn the meeting. Charlie Pratt
seconded.

Motion carried 5-0.

The time was 4:28 p.m.

Lori Kopec, Town Clerk



L%l o A Rules of Use for Special Events within
' ' Duck Town Park
Y ad N Duck, NC
NORTH CAROLINA

Special events not associated with Town activities are generally prohibited. However,
permission to hold a special event may be requested in writing on forms provided by the Town
from the Town Manager provided that the event is to be held during the period between
November 1 and May 31 of each year and provided that the event is opened to the general
public free of charge, is deemed to be for the good of the community, is sponsored by or to
benefit a not-for-profit organization, and/or is in partnership with the Town.

The Town of Duck, North Carolina welcomes persons, organizations or groups to use Duck
Town Park facilities for various purposes provided that the proposed use enhances the vibrancy
of the Duck Commercial Village and generates increased patronage of Duck businesses and
venues.

The following rules have been developed to ensure the care and protection of the Park Facilities
and to ensure a safe and orderly environment for the events. The nature and scheduling of all
activities must be approved by the Town of Duck Staff.

A “Town Park Special Events Permit Application” must be completed and signed by the
applicant. Enforcement of the rules of use will not be influenced or affected by age, race,
national origin, disability, religion or partisan politics.

See Chapter 93 of the Town of Duck Code of Ordinances for the full ordinance pertaining to Special Events. By signing this form,
the applicant hereby certifies that all information provided herein is true and correct and that all provisions of laws and
ordinances governing these activities will be complied with whether specified herein or not.

Application Process:

1. Applications and supporting documents may be submitted to the Administrative Office of the
Duck Town Hall between 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday — Friday at 1200 Duck Road, or
mailed to Attn: Special Events, Town of Duck, PO Box 8369, Duck, NC 27949. Once submitted
all applications will be reviewed by the Town of Duck Staff. All applicants will be notified as to
the status of their application within fourteen (14) days of the date of application. In addition to
the application form, applicants shall submit the following either at the time of application or
according to the schedule provided:

i. A sketch plan map depicting use of the requested space must be provided at the time
of application submission.

ii. A security plan for the event will be required at the time of application. The size of
event, total expected attendance, parking requirements, need for medical personnel,
time of day and location of the event are all items that should be considered and
addressed within a written security plan. With minimal training, volunteer event staff are
often able to meet the security needs of smaller community events and private activities.
For certain larger events, especially those that include amplified sound, The Town of
Duck may require the user to retain off-duty police officers from the Duck Police
Department to assist with event security.



iii. Users must present the Town of Duck with a certificate of liability insurance within
thirty (30) days of the event. This insurance should show general liability insurance for at
least $1,000,000.00, also naming the Town of Duck as an additional insured.

iv. Non-profit organizations must submit a copy of their 501(c)3 certification along with
the application and other required forms.

2. General application fees must be paid at the time of submission of the application and may
be paid electronically with a credit/debit card or with cash or check. Please note that depending
upon the nature and scale of the event, the Town of Duck may require the user to utilize
additional resources such as off-duty Duck Police Officers and/or event assistance from the
Town of Duck special events staff. A fee schedule for these services is provided in Section 2 (ii)
below and notification of the need for these additional resources will be made at the time of the
conditional application approval. All additional fees must be paid within thirty (30) days of the
event. Fees for applications that are not approved will be returned minus the $25.00 application
fee.

i. General Fee Schedule

e Application Fee $25

e Deposit $200

e Event where Town is major sponsor $275

e Duck based not-for-profit $150

e Outer Banks not-for-profit $300

e Non Outer Banks based not-for-profit $1,000

ii. Additional Fee Schedule
e Off Duty Duck Police Officer....... $35/Hr. with four (4) hour minimum
o Special Events Staff...Staffing and fees assessed during application process if
applicable.

iii. In addition to any other required application fee such as those for the use of required off-duty
police officers, a $200 refundable deposit will be required. This deposit will be refunded
following the event once the Town is assured that the Duck Town Park area utilized by the
event has been cleaned up and that all requirements of the permit have been complied with. If
damage exceeds the amount of the deposit, the event sponsors are responsible for the cost of
any additional repairs.

3. Applications for an event may be submitted as early as ten (10) months prior to the event, but
no later than 90 days prior to the event date. An event shall be defined as a single activity of the
same type sponsored and/or promoted by the same business or organization with a duration not
to exceed eight (8) hours. Applications are considered on a first come, first served basis and
according to the event priority guidelines. All applicants will be notified of their application status
within fourteen (14) days of application filing. Cancellations made at least sixty (60) days prior to
the event are eligible for a full refund minus the $25.00 application fee. Cancellations for events
that are subject to the facility use fee made within sixty (60) days of the event may have that
portion of the fee refunded.



General Rules of Use:
1. Applications for use of Duck Town Park must comply with all Town Codes (and Town
operating procedures) as well as applicable State and Federal laws.

2. Fireworks and open flames are prohibited.

3. Temporary permits for food sales at public events are required through the Dare County
Health Department per North Carolina law. Event coordinators (no application fee) plus each
food vendor (check with Health Department for current application fee, unless the vending is for
a tax exempt entity) must submit completed applications and fees at least 10 days prior to the
event to the Dare County Health Department.

5. Alcoholic Beverages may not be sold or distributed on Duck Town Park facilities.

6. Restrooms and Sanitation - It is the responsibility of the event organizer to provide adequate
on-site restrooms to meet the specific needs of their event. Installation of portable restrooms
may be required to supplement existing facilities based upon the maximum number of attendees
at the event during peak periods. The Town Hall has ten (10) permanent toilet facilities available
which will accommodate an event up to 500 people. Beyond 500, event organizers are required
to provide an additional two (2) toilets per 250 people, with ADA accessible facilities at a ratio of
one out of every three. The location and delivery schedule for portable restrooms must be
approved through Town of Duck special events staff. Depending upon the type and duration of a
proposed event, the applicant may be required to provide portable restrooms in excess of the
minimum requirements.

7. Sound Amplification - Amplification of music and sound, including megaphones, as part of an
outdoor special event is regulated in compliance with the Town’s noise ordinance.

8. Each entity using Duck Town Park facilities will be responsible for immediately removing all
litter, signs, and other materials brought to the Park at the end of the activity. While litter and
recycling receptacles are provided at Duck Town Park, applicants should request additional
receptacles should there be a need beyond what is provided. Please note that failure to properly
clean up following an event will result in forfeiture of the $200 event deposit.

Additional Information:

For additional information regarding the use of Town of Duck Park Facilities for an event, please contact
the Town of Duck’s Special Event Coordinator

1200 Duck Road

Duck, NC 27949

Tel. 252.255.1234

info@townofduck.com

Web: www.townofduck.com




>y
L inp Town Park SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT APPLICATION
| NOTE: Submission of a Town Park Special Event Permit Application is NOT automatic

et approval to hold an event on public property.

Date Received

Name of Organization

Primary Event Coordinator Contact Name Phone 1: OHOwOc

Phone 2: Ou0Ow Oc  Contact Email:

Organization Group Type (i.e. non-profit, charitable, etc.)

Organization Address City. State Zip

Alternate Email Address Fax

Event Website Address/Social Media Handles

Special Event Logistics:
Proposed Location(s) I Town Green [JAmphitheater [] Picnic Shelter [1Meeting Hall [JConference Room

Day(s) & Date(s) of Actual Event

Estimated Attendance - Total Event(s) & at Peak Period(s)

Event Operating Hours - Opening AM/PM - through - Closing AM/PM

Set-up Date(s) Set-up Time(s) AM/PM

Set-up Date(s) Set-up Time(s) AM/PM

Primary On-Site Contact Phone 1: OHOwOc

This should be someone readily accessible with this cell phone on his or her person during the event in case the town needs to make contact.

Phone 2: Oudw@Oc Admission Fee

Town Park Special Event Details: add additional sheet if needed

Mission/Purpose of Event

Describe Event

Excluding furnishings, list types of structures and estimated quantities of each to be added to the event site: (tents, inflatables, staging, port-
a-johns, fencing, generators, etc.)




Set-Up/Break-Down & Load-In/Out:
Will any vehicles/trailers need access to non-parking areas? Yes No If yes, how many:

Will any vehicles/trailers be within the site during festival hours? Yes No If yes, How many:

Food Sales; Merchandise Sales & Vending:

Will there be any merchandise vendors/sales? Yes No

Describe:

Will there be any food or beverage vendors/sales? Yes No

Describe:
Alcoholic Beverage Sale & Consumption: SALE OF ALCOHOL IS NOT ALLOWED
Animal Exhibits & Pets:

Will any livestock, domesticated or non-domesticated animals be on-site? Yes No

Describe:

Tents, Canopies & Structures:

Will tents or canopies be used at the event? Yes No
Are any portions of this event held on private property? Yes No
Electricity:

Does your event require electricity? Yes No

Source: (generator or existing exterior outlet):

Sound Amplification:

Will sound amplification be used? Yes No
Sanitation:

Will there be any cooking with grease? Yes No
Will supplemental waste receptacles be used? Yes No

Portable Restrooms:

Will portable restrooms be used? Yes No

Quantity: Installation Date: Removal Date:

Location(s):

Note: There are 10 facilities in Town Hall accommodating events of up to 500 people. Two port-o-johns per the addition of 250 people required.
Marketing & Public Relations:

Is this event planned to reoccur on an annual basis? Yes No
Will the event be publicized - open to the general public? Yes No
Will banners or signs be used outside the event site? Yes No

Fireworks & Open Flames are NOT allowed.

Application Package Submittal Checklist:
ATTACHMENTS
Site Plans/Route Maps (Include: [Jevent location; [lconcession areas, [lvendor locations, ['major congregation points, [lparking
locations/details, [tent locations, [lpedestrian/vehicle egress areas, [Irestroom locations, [lother related activities)

Crowd Control Procedures Traffic and parking control

Temporary Food Service Vendor Permit Insurance Certificates

Fire Control and Prevention Plan Provisions for solid waste/sanitation control
Provision for EMS and first aid Post-event clean up

Event Impacts (as they relate to parking, streets and expected burden on public safety to assist with traffic and/or crowd and security)
Application must be submitted three to six months prior to your event date.
Submit Application Package to the Town of Duck, PO Box 8369, Duck, NC 27949
Physical Address: 1200 Duck Road, Duck, NC 27949 Phone: 252.255.1234



A $25.00 non-refundable application fee (payable to the Town of Duck) must accompany the Town Park Event Application package submittal.
The application package must be received 90 days, or more, prior to your event date. The balance of applicable fees and charges will
be invoiced once preliminary approval is granted. Note additional public safety equipment may be required upon review of your application.

Special events not associated with town activities are generally prohibited. However, permission to hold a special event may be requested in
writing (Special Events Permit Application) from the Town Manager provided that the event is to be held during the period between
November 1 and May 31 of each year and provided that the event is opened to the general public free of charge, is deemed to be for the good
of the community, is sponsored by or to benefit a not-for-profit organization, and/or is in partnership with the Town of Duck.

If the date and/or location requested is not available, or if the requested location is not an appropriate site to conduct your proposed event,
the department will contact. Your confirmation will be in the form of a permit, issued to the organization and / or person responsible for
planning the event. Do not publicize your event until preliminary approval has been confirmed. The submission of a Town Park Special
Event Permit Application is NOT automatic approval to hold an event on public property.

Everything that I have stated on this application is correct to the best of my knowledge. | have read, understand, and agree to abide by the
policies, rules and regulations listed within the Town of Duck’s Special Events Ordinances as applicable to all plans and requested usage. The
permit, if granted, is not transferable and is revocable at any time at the absolute discretion of the Town of Duck.

Name of Applicant

Signature Date

See Chapter 93 of the Town of Duck Code of Ordinances for the full ordinance pertaining to Special Events. By signing this form, the applicant
hereby certifies that all information provided herein is true and correct and that all provisions of laws and ordinances governing these activities
will be compiled with whether specified herein or not.

General Fee Schedule

. Application Fee $25
. Deposit $200
. Event where Town is major sponsor $275
. Duck based not-for-profit $150
. Outer Banks not-for-profit $300
. Non Outer Banks based not-for-profit$1,000

Additional Fee Schedule
. Off Duty Duck Police Officer......$35/Hr. with four (4) hour minimum
. Special Events Staff...Staffing and fees assessed during application process if applicable.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

DATE APPROVED BY RESERVATION FEES
APPLICATION FEE RECEIVED RESERVATION FEE RECEIVED
DATE RESERVATION FEE RECEIVED DATE OF DEPOSIT RETURN

NOTES




